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GASHPL GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the 4th (Fourth) Annual General Meeting (" AGM") of the members of GR Akkalkot 
Solapur Highway Private Limited ("the Company") will be held on Saturday, 30th July 2022 at 01:30PM at 

Registered Office of the Company at GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector No. 11, Udaipur-313002, Rajasthan to transact 
the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 3l't March 2022 

together with the Report of Auditors and Board of Directors thereon . 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Vikas Agarwal (DIN : 03113689), who retires by rotation and being eligible 

offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary 

Resolution: 

3. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company. 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) 

or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), if any, consent of the members of the Company, be 
and is hereby accorded for ratification of remuneration of Rs . 5,000 (Rupees Five Thousand only) plus 
applicable taxes and reimbursement of actual out of pocket expenses, payable to M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati 
and Co., Cost Accountants, who were appointed by the Board of Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct Cost 
Audit of the Company as prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014, for the 
financial year 2022-23." 

4. Appointment of Mr. Varun Bhasin (DIN: 03262761) as Director of the Company. 
"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Varun Bhasin (DIN : 03262761), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 5th April 2022, under Section 161(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and applicable provisions of the 

Date: 06.07.2022 
Place: Udaipur 

NOTES: 

By order of the Board 

~· 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. A56556 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ("THE MEETING") IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ANY OTHER 

PERSON AS HIS/ HER PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 

OF THE COMPANY. 

Proxies, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before the 
commencement of the meeting. A proxy form is appended with admission slip. 
A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capita l of the company carrying voting 
rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

2. Any documents and papers as referred to in this notice and as required by the Companies Act, 2013 shall be available for inspection 
between 11:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. on all working days at the registered office of the Company and same shall also be so available during the 
meeting. 

3. A Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the special business to be transacted at the Meeting is 
annexed hereto. 

4. Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the meeting are provided in the "Annexure-!" to this notice. 

REGISTERED OFFICE : GR House, Hi ran Magri, Sector-11 , Udaipur- 313 002 (Rajasthan) 
Ph .: +91-294-2487370, 2483033, Email : info@grinfra.com, Website : www.grinfra .com 
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EXPlANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ITEM N0.3 

The Board has approved the appointment of the Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the 
Company, for the financial year ending 3P1 March 2023 at a remuneration of Rs. 50001- plus applicable taxes 
and actual out-of-pocket expenses. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Compan ies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditors approved by the Board of Directors, has to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, 
consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice 
for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year end ing 3P1 March 
2023. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolut ion set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the 
members. 

None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

ITEM NO.4 

Mr. Va run Bhasin (DIN: 03262761), was appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the provisions ofthe 
Companies Act, 2013, on 61h April 2022. The term of his office expires on the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible, he has offered himself for his appointment as Director. 

The Board recommends the Ordint:~ry Resolution for approval by the members. 

The details of Director seeking appointment is provided in the "Annexure-!" to this notice. 

None of the Directors except Mr. Varun Bhasin himself I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company I their 

Date: 06.07 .2022 
Place: Udaipur 

By order of the Board 

~.: 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Membership No. A56556 



Annexure -I 
Information of the Director seeking appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 
issued by the ICSI) as on date of the Notice of Annual General Meeting is as under: 

Name and DIN Mr. Vikas Agarwal, DIN: 03113689 Mr. Varun Bhasin, DIN: 03262761 

Date of Birth/ Age 1S'h October 1980, 41 years 19'h November 1979, 42 years 

Bachelor's degree (Honors) in commerce from 

Qualification 
Bachelor's degree in Commerce from Delhi University. He is Qualified Chartered 
Maharana Pratap University, Chittorgarh Accountant from the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India (ICAI). 

He has experience of over 17 years in the He has over 19 years of experience in the field 

Experience and Expertise in road construction industry. He is responsible of Banking, Finance, Audit, Internal control, 
specific functional area for overseeing the functioning of running Compliance, Taxation, Management 

projects of the Company. Information System and Budgeting etc. 

Terms and condition of 
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director 

appointment along with details 
Remuneration : Nil Remuneration: Nil 

of remuneration sought 

Last drawn remuneration, if 
Nil Nil 

applicable 

Number of shares held in GR 

Akka lkot Solapur Highway Nil Nil 
Private Limited 

No. of Board Meetings Three out of Five Board meetings held Not applicable as he was appointed 
attended during the Financia l Year 2021-22 Additional Director on 6'h April 2022. 

Original Date of Appointment 26'h April 2018 6'h April 2022 

Relationship with other 
Nil Nil 

Directors 

• Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 

G R Infra projects Limited 
Limited 

• • GR Phagwara Expressway Limited 
• Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 

• GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Other Directorship held in Limited 

• GR Dwarka Devariya Highway Private 
Indian companies • Reengus Sikar Expressway Limited 

Limited 
• GR Phagwara Expressway Limited • GR Aligarh Kanpur Highway Private Limited 

• Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private 
Limited 

1) GR Phagwara Expressway Limited: 1) GR Phagwara Expressway Limited: 

• Member of CSR Committee • Chairperson of CSR Committee 
2) Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 2) Varanasi Sangam Expressway Private 

Limited: Limited: 

• Chairperson of CSR Committee • Member of CSR Committee 

• Chairperson of Audit Committee • Member of Audit Committee 

• Chairperson of Nomination and • Member of Nomination and 
Membership/Chairman ofthe Remuneration Committee Remuneration Committee 
Committees in other • Member of Stakeholder Relationship • Chairperson of Stakeholder Relationship 
Companies in India Committee Committee 

• Member of Risk Management • Chairperson of Risk Management 
Committee Committee 

~) Reengus Sikar Expressway Limited 3) GR Sangli Solapur Highway Private Limited 

• Member of CSR Committee • Chairperson of CSR Committee 
4) Nagaur Mukundgarh Highways Private 

Limited 

• Member of CSR Committee 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

DIRECTORS' REPORT 

To 

The M embers, 

GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 4th (Fourth) Annual Report on the business and operations 
of t he Company together wi th t he Aud ited Financia l Statements for t he fi nancial yea r ended 31st March 
2022. 

FINANCIAL$ HIGHLIGHTS 
The financia l highlights of the Company fo r the year ended 31st March 2022 are as under: 

(Amount Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st M arch 2021 

Revenue from Operations 14,741.57 27,569.55 

Other Income 127.51 172.91 

Total Revenue 14,869.08 27,742.46 

Less: Expenses 11,734.63 27,376.50 

Profit before Tax 3,134.45 365.96 

Less: Tax Expense 788.88 79.13 

Profit after Tax 2,345.57 286.83 

STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

During the year under review, the Company has reported Tota l Revenue of Rs. 14,869.08 Lakhs as 

compared toRs. 27,742.46 Lakhs in financial yea r 2020-21. 

Profit after Tax for the yea r ended 31st M arch 2022 is Rs. 2,345.57 Lakhs as aga inst Rs. 286.83 Lakhs for 
the year ended 31st M arch 2021. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
There was no change in t he nature of Company's business during the Financia l Year 2021-2022. 

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
During the year under review, there was no change in t he capita l structu re of t he Company. The 
Authori sed, Issued, Subscribed and Pa id-Capital of the Company was Rs. 12,60,00,000/- consisting of 

1,26,00,000 Equity shares of Rs .10/- each. The Company has not issued any equity shares w ith differential 

rights, sweat equity shares or bonus shares during the yea r under review. 

DIVIDEND 

Considering the requ irement of the funds fo r business operations of the Company, your directors th ink it 

prudent not to recommend dividend for the f inancial year ended 3P' March 2022 (previous year: Nil). 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE 
During the year under review Company has t ransferred Rs. 1580 Lakhs to Debenture Redemption 

Reserve. 

Registered Office : 
GR House, Hiran Magri, Sector-11 , Udaipur-313 002 (Rajasthan) 
Ph.:+ 91-294-2487370, 2483033, Fax : + 91-294-24877 49 
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SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURES. 
The Company does not have any Subsidia ry, Associate or Jo int Ventures Company. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any regulators or 
courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations in future. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

There have been no material changes and/or commitments affecting the financia l position of your 

company which has occurred from the end of the financial year upto the date of signing of this Report. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Statutory Auditors 
M/s JLN US & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101543W) were appointed by the Shareholders at Annual 
General Meeting of the Company he ld on 27th September 2019 as the Statuto ry Auditors for a period of 

five years to hold office upto t he conclusion of the 6th Annual Genera l Meeting to be held in Financial Year 
2023-24. They have audited the financial statements of the Company for the Financial Year under review. 

The observations of Statutory Aud itors in their Report along with rel evant Notes to Accounts are self­
explanatory and therefore, do not req ui re further exp lanation. The Auditors' Report does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse remark. Further, there was no incidence of fraud reported by the 

Statutory Auditors under sub-sect ion (12) of section 143 other than those which are reportable to the 

Cent ral Government. 

Secret arial Auditor 
M/s. Bharat Chaudhary & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice were appointed to conduct 
Secret ar ia l Aud it of the Company for the financia l year ended 31st March 2022. The Secretarial Audit 

Report for the said Financial Year is annexed herewith and forms part of th is Report as Annexure I. The 

report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 

Internal Auditor 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Compan ies Act, 2013, Mr. Nayan Ja in, Chartered 
Accountant (M. No. 445570) was appointed as an internal audito r w.e.f. 8thJanuary 2021, however he 

resigned from t he office of Internal Aud itor w.e.f. 5th March 2022. 

Cost Records and Auditors 
Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 

148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is requi red by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records 

are made and mainta ined. 

M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants have audited the Cost Statements of the Company and 
submitted the Cost Audit Report for the Financ ial Year ended 31st March 2022. The report does not 

contain any qua lif ication, reservation or adverse remark. 

Further, the Board has approved appointment of M/s Rajendra Singh Bhati & Co., Cost Accountants as 
Cost Auditors for the financia l year ended 31st March 2023. The remuneration payab le to the Cost 

Auditors is required to be ratifi ed by the members, the Board recommends the same for approva l by 

members at the ensu ing Annual General Meeting. 



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

During the year under review, Mr. Karan Agarwa l (DIN : 07560879) resigned as Di rect or of the Company 

with effect from 281
h March 2022. The board place on records its appreciation for the contribu t ions made 

by Mr. Karan Aga rwa l during his tenure as director of the Company. 

Further, in accordance with the provisions of t he Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Vikas Agarwal (DIN: 

03113689), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual Genera l Meeting and being 
eligible, has offered himsel f for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment. 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors 
Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that: 

a) In preparation of Annual Accounts fo r the Financia l Year 2021-2022, t he applicable accounting 

standards have been fo llowed and there are no materia l departures; 

b) They have selected such Account ing policies and applied them consist ently and made j udgments and 
estimates t hat are reasonable and prudent so as t o give true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of f inancial year and of t he Profit of the Company for the f inancial yea r; 

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care t o the best of t heir knowledge and abili ty for the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and oth er 
irregularit ies; 

d) They have prepared annua l accounts on a going concern basis. 
e) The Company being unlisted sub clause (e) of Section 134(3) is not appli cable. 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems t o ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

As the Company is not req uired to appoint an Independent Director, therefore, the requirement to obtain 
declaration from Independent Director is not applicable on the Company. 

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 

The provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Act regarding conservation of Energy and Technology 

Absorption are not applicable to the Company. Further there was no foreign exchange Inflow or Outflow 

during the year under review. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company has constituted Corporate Socia l Responsibility ("CSR") Committee in accordance with 

provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR init iatives undertaken by your Company, 
along wi th other details for the Financia l Year 2021-22 and salient features on CSR policy forms part of 

Annua l Report on Corporate Social Responsibi lity as Annexure -II to th is Directors Report. During the year 
under review One Meeting of the Committee was held on P1 December 2021. 

DEPOSITS 

During the yea r under review, t he Company has not accepted any deposit s in terms of Chapter V of t he 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. 

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

During the Financial Year 2021-2022, all Related Party Transactions entered into by your Company wi th 

related parties were in ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis. Further, deta ils of materia l 



contracts/a rrangements/transactions entered by the Company at arm's length basis are disclosed in Fo rm 

AOC-2 as Annexure-Ill to the Director's Report. 

The required information in compliance with the Accounting Standard on Re lated Party Disclosures as 
required under Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is 
disclosed at Financia l Statements forming part of the Annual Report of the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

During the Financial year under review, there was no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits 
prescribed by provision of Section 197 (12) read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of M anageria l Personnel) Rules, 2014 of the Act. 

Further, disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Manageria l Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given below: 

Name Designation Qualification Work Age Remuneration Previous 
Experience (Years) paid in FY Employment 

(Years) 2021-22 
Nandini Company B.Com (Hons.) CS, 3.8 31 Rs. 4. 19 Lakhs Seclore 
Agarwal Secretary LL.B. Technology 

Private 

Limited 

None of the employee of the Company holds any equity share of the Company nor is relative of any 
Director o r KMP of the Company. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 
Your Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, mora l, and legal business conduct. 

Accordingly, the Board of Directo rs has formulated Vigil Mechanism which provides a robust framework 

for dealing with genuine conce rns & grievances. Specifi cally, employees can ra ise concerns regarding any 
discrimination, harassment, v ict im ization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any 
instances of fraud by or against your Company. During Financial Year under review, no compla int was 

rece ived by the Company. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

Your company has neither made any Investment, nor any guarantee has been given. Your Company falls 

within scope of t he definition " Infrastructu re Company" as provided by the Companies Act, 2013. 
Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act w ith regards to loans, 
Guarantees and Investments. 

MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Details of Board meetings held during t he financial yea r 2021-22 alongwith attendance of directors 

therein are as under: 

S. No. Date of Board M eeting Mr. Anand Rathi * Mr. Karan Agarwal" Mr. Vikas Agarwal 

1. 26.05.2021 Yes Yes Yes 

2. 02.07.2021 Yes No Yes 

3. 29.10.2021 Yes Yes No 

4. 02.12.2021 Yes Yes No 

5. 31.01.2022 Yes Yes Yes 

Meet ings eligible to attend 5 5 5 

Meetings attended 5 4 3 



*Ceased to become director of the company w.e.f. 6th April 2022 and Mr. Varun Bhasin was appointed as 
additional director w.e.f 6th April 2022. 

#Ceased to become director of the Company w.e.f 28th March 2022. 

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed under the Compan ies 
Act, 2013. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The provisions of Section 177 relating to constitution of Aud it Commit tee are not applicab le on the 
Company. 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The provisions of Section 178 relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are 
not applicable on the Company. Accordingly company did not have adopted a policy on Directors' 
appointment and remune ration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 

independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of section 178. 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 
The provisions of Sexual Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibi t ion and Redressal) Act, 
2013 are not applicable on the Company. 

RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

Your company regular ly reviews t he risk ma nagement system and major ri sks associated w ith bus iness 
activities of the company. Further, t he Board of Di recto rs ta kes appropriate measures, reviews the major 

risks associated with the Company and takes all requis ite measures to minimize them. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Your Company has a strong and well embedded system of int ernal controls. This ensures that all assets 
are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and all tra nsactions are 

authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The interna l contro l system has been designed to ensure 
that financial and other records are re liable for preparing financial and other statements and for 

maintaining accountab ility of assets. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable 

materia l weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

Your Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by The Institute of 

Compan ies Secretaries of Ind ia i.e. SS-1 & SS-2 on meetings of the Board of Directors and Genera l 
Meet ings, respectively. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Sect ion 92(3) read w ith Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 3P1 March 2022 
is available on the Company's website i.e. http://www.grakso.com/. 

NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs) 

During the Financia l Year, the Company has issued and allotted following Non-convertible debentures 

(" NCO") on Private Placement basis: 

S. No. Description of NCD Face value Per NCD Issue Size Name of Trustee 

1. Senior, List ed, Rated, Secured, Rs. 10 Lakh Rs. 158 
Axis Trustee Services Limited 

Redeemable, Non-Convertible Cro res 

Debentu res 



OTHER DISCLOSURES 

1. The details of Debenture Tru st ee is available on the Company' s website i.e. 

http://www.grakso.com/grievance/. 

2. The Company has neither made any application, nor any proceedings are pending under th e Inso lvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

3. The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement w ith any Bank or Financial Inst itut ions, 

hence disclosure under rule (8)(5)(xi i ) of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not appl icable. 

LISTING OFNON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES {NCDs) 

The NCD(s)were list ed on Wholesale Debt Market Segment on BSE Limited ("BSE") on 61hDecember 2021. 

The annual listing fee for the Financia l Year 2022-23 has been paid. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the Nationa l Highways Authority of Ind ia, Shareholders, 

Bankers, Central and State Government officials for their cont inued support. 

Dat e: 19.05.2022 

Place: Gurugram 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Vikas Agarwal 
Director 
DIN: 03113689 

Varun Bhasin 
Additional Director 
DIN : 03262761 



OS 
Bharat Choudhary & Associates 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 

TO, 

Form No. MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report 

Mail ld: csaudr19@gmail.com 

(For the Financial Year Ended 31.03.2022) 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

THE MEMBERS, 
GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
(CIN: U45201RJ2018PTC061051) 
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR N0.11, 
UDAIPUR, RAJASTHAN-313002, INDIA 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE 
LIMITED (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
a nd other records maintained and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period April 01, 2021 to March 31, 2022, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made herein after: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by GRAKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions (to the extent applicable) of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and .Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Externa l 
Commercial borrowings; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India Act, ('SEBI Act') 1992:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

1 
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us 
Bharat Choudhary & Associates 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Mob. No.: 9351962446 

Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, now known as SEBI (Share based 
Employees Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008 read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2021;and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

6. I have also examined compliance with Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of 
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India. 

I further report that 

,. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Y Adequate notice has been given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance and a 
system exists for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

:;... All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings have been carried unanimously /with 
requisite majority as recorded in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or 
Committee of the Board, as the case may be. 

,. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 
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OS 
Bharat Choudhary & Associates 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 
Mob. No.: 9351962446 

Mail Id: csaudr19@gmail.com 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period: 
(i) Mr. Karan Agarwal (DIN: 07560879) resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 

28th March 2022. 
(ii) Company issued 1580 (One Thousand Five Hundred and Eighty) Senior, Listed, Rated, 

Secured, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of face value of INR 
10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) aggregating upto INR 1,58,00,00,000 (Indian 
Rupees One Hundred and Fifty-Eight Crores Only) and NCDs got listed on BSE Limited on 
6th December 2021. 

For BHARAT CHOUDHARY & ASSOCIATES 

Bharat Choudha 
Proprietor 
M.No.: F10700 
COP No.: 14489 

Place: Udaipur 
Date: 19/05/2022 

UDIN:F010700D000335266 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "ANNEXURE-1" 
and forms an integral part if this report. 
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Bharat Choudhary & Associates 

"ANNEXURE-1" 

TO, 
THE MEMBERS, 
GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
GR HOUSE, HIRAN MAGRI, SECTOR N0.11, 
UDAIPUR, RAJASTHAN- 313002 

My Report of given date is to be read along with this letter. 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 
Mob. No.: 9351962446 

Mail ld: csaudr19@gmail.com 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 

the process and practice I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts ofthe Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 

Laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, rules, regulation and 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was Limited to the verification of 

procedure on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

BHARATCHOUDHAR 
PROPRIETOR 
M.No.: F10700 
CoP No.: 14489 

Place: Udaipur (Raj.) 
Date: 19/05/2022 

UDIN:F010700D000335266 
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ANNEXURE-II 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the GR Akka lkot Solapur Highway Private Limited as a 
company: responsible co rporate entity undertakes appropriate CSR 

measures having positive economic, socia l, and 
environmenta l impact to transform lives and to help in 
bui ld ing more capable and vibrant communit ies by 
int egrating its business va lues and st rengths. 
In its continuous efforts to pos it ive ly impact the society 
and to t arget the inclusive growth of all the stakeholders, 
the Company has formulated a gu iding policy 
concentrating mainly on promoting education, 
environment sustainability, economic empowerment, 
ru ral development, health care and sanitation. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

S. No. Name of director Designation/ Number of 
Nature of meetings of 
Directorship CSR Committee 

held during the 
year 

1 Anand Rathi Cha irman 1 
2 Vikas Agarwal Member 1 

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR http://www.grakso.com/ 
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are disclosed on the 
website of the company. 

4. Provide the detai ls of Impact assessment of CSR Not Applicable 
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) 
of rule 8 of t he Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibil ity Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable 
(attach t he report). 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee 
attended during 
the year 

1 
1 

5. Deta ils of the amount ava ilable for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of t he Companies (Corporate 

Social responsib ility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for t he f inancial year, if any 

S. No. Financial Year Amount availab le for set-off from Amount required to be setoff 
preceding financial years (in Rs. for the financia l year, if any (in 
Lakhs) Rs. Lakhs) 

NIL 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. (573.29) Lakhs 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Rs. (11.47) Lakhs 
section 135(5): 
(b) Su rplus arising out of t he CSR projects or programmes or -

activities of the previous fin a ncia I years 
(c) Amount requ ired to be set off for the f inancia l year, if any -

(d) Tota l CS R obligation for th e f inancial year (7a + 7b + 7c) -



8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for t he financial yea r: 

Total Amount Spent for Amount Unspent 
the Financial Year (in Rs. Crore) 

(in Rs. Crore) Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund 
Unspent CSR Account as per specified under Schedule VI I as per 
section 135 (6). second proviso to section 135(5). 

Amount 

I 
Date of Name of Fund I Amount I Date of 

(in Rs.) transfer transfer 

Nil 

(b) Detai ls of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial yea r: 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (S) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

S. No Name of the Project Item Local Location of the Project Amount Amo Amount Mo Mode of 
f rom the area project duratio allocated unt transferred de Implementation -
list of (Yes/ n for the spent to Unspent of Through Implementing 
act ivities No) project in the CSR Account Imp I Agency 
in (in Rs.) curre for the eme 
Schedule nt project as nta 
VII to the f in an per tion 
Act . cia I Section -

State District Year 13S(6) Dire Name CSR 
(in (in Rs.) ct Registrat 
Rs.) (Yes ion 

/ No number 
). 

Ni l 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent aga inst other than ongoing projects for th e fi nancial yea r : 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

S. No. Name of Item from the list of Loca l Loca tion of the proj ect Amount M ode of Mode of implementat ion-
the activities in schedule area spent for lmplementa Through implementing 
Project VII to the Act. (Yes/ The tion - Direct agency 

No) project (Yes/No) 
State District (in Rs.). Name CSR 

registration 

number. 

Nil 

(d) Amount spent in Administ ra tive Overheads -

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicab le -

(f)Total amount spent for Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) -

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 

S. No. Particular Amount (in Rs. Lakhs) 

i. Two perce nt of ave rage net profit of the company as per section 135(5) (11.47) 

ii. Total amount spent for the Financial Yea r Nil 

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year [( ii)-(i)] Nil 

iv. Surplus arising out of t he CSR projects or programmes or activit ies of t he Nil 

previous financia l yea rs, if any 

V. Amount availa ble fo r set off in succeed ing f inancial years [(iii)-(iv)) Nil 



9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial yea rs: 

S. No. Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount remaining 
Financial Yea r. transferred to spent in fund specified under Schedule to be spent in 

Unspent CSR the VII as per section 135(6), if succeeding finanCial 
Account under reporting any. years. (in Rs.) 
section 135 {6) Financial Name Amount Date of 
(in Rs.) Year of the (in Rs). transfer 

(in Rs.) Fund 
Not applicable 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the fin ancial yea r for ongoing projects of the preced ing f inancial year(s): 

{1) (2) (3) {4) (5) (6) {7) {8) (9) 

s. 
No 

Project Name of Financia l Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of 
I D. the Year in duration amount spent on amount the 

Project. which the allocated the project spent project-
project was for the in the at the end of Completed 
commenced proj ect reporting reporting /Ongoing. 

(in Rs.) . Financial Financial 
Year (in Year. (in Rs.) 
Rs) . 

Not applicable 

10. In case of creation or acqu isition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to th e asset so created or 

acquired through CSR spent in the fi nancia l yea r (asset- wise details) 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquis ition of capital asset. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose 
name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 
{d) Provide details of th e capital asset(s) created or acquired 
{including complete address and location of the capital asset). 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has 
failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per sect ion 135{5). 

-

-

-

-

Not applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Varun Bhasin 

Chairman - CSR Committee 

DIN : 03262761 

uvdcd~ 
Vikas Agarwal 

Director 

DIN: 03113689 



ANNEXURE -Ill 

Form No. AOC-2 
{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2} of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014} 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred t o in sub-section (1} of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm' s length basis: 

Name(s} of the related Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the Date(s} of Amount paid Date on which the speci al 
party and nature of contracts/ arrangem the contracts or approval by as advances resolution w as passed in 
relationship ent/transactions contracts I arrangements or the Board, if (if any) general m eeting as required 

arrangeme transactions including any: under first proviso to section 
nts/transac the value, if any: 188 
tions 

Not Appl icable 

2. Details of material contract s or arrangement or transa ctions at arm's length basis : 

Name(s} of the related 
party and nature of 

relationship 

G R lnfraproj ects Limited 
("GRIL" } 
(Holding Company} 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangement/ 
transactions 

Operations 
and 
M aintenance 
("O&M ") 
Agreement 

Duration of 

contracts/ 
arrangem ents/ 
transactions 

the 

The contract shall 
remain in force w.e.f. 
13th October 2021 and 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any: 

O&M Agreement Date: 13th October 2021 

Amount of Contract: Rs. 2.5 Crores 

shall rem ain in fo rce for I Subject M atter : Operation & Maintenance of t he 
one Year. Project Highway i.e. Four Ianing of Akkalkot-Solapur 

Section of NH-150E from Km. 99+400 (Design 
Chainage) to km. 138+352 (Design Chainage) including 
Akkalkot bypass (Design length 7.350 km.) in the State 
of M aharashtra on Hybrid Annuity Mode. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

{J,A_twf~ 

Date(s} of Amount 
approval by paid as 
the Board, if advances 
any: (if any, in 

Rs. lakhs} 

Not 

applicable 

Nil 

v~~ 
Vikas Agarwal 
Director 
DIN: 03113689 
Dat e: 19.05.2022 

Place: Gurugram 

Varun Bhasin 
Additional Director 
DIN: 03262761 
Dat e: 19.05 .2022 
Place: Gurugram 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

JLN US & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
415, First Floor, Vishwakarma Complex 
Near Paragon Mobile, Inside Udiapole 
Udaipur 313001 , Rajasthan, India 
Mobile : +91-98280 58602', +91-98280 52131 
Email : maheshmenaria@gmail.com 

jlnusudaipur@gmail .com 
Web : www.jlnus.com 

TO THE MEMBERS OF GRAKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GR AKKALKOT 
SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2022, its profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by 
ICAI and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 
The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to ~, a $ r'ally misstated. 

~ //N 

< ,_ 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material 
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in Annexure II. 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
material impact its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any 
provisioning 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the 
reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN~43W 

/. 
CA Mahe h Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN:22400828AJLPYK3758 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRN ATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

Annexure - I to the Independent Auditors Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31,2022 

i) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
fixed assets in existence with company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly 
the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

ii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has sub-contracted the entire construction f operation related activities 
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements 
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting 
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. 
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly 
reviewed such records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service 
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities in India. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31, 
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

& 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of 
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during 
the year. 

ix) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information 
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks f Financial Institutions. 
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture 
Holders. 

x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utilised for the purpose for 
which they were taken. 

xi) (a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the 
management, the money raised by way of listed debt instruments and has been 
applied for the purpose for which they were obtained. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the company has made 
preferential allotment or private placement of non convertible debentures during 
the year under review and the requirement of section 42 and 62 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been complied with and the amount raised have been used for the 
purposes for which the funds were raised. 

xii) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the 
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the 
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we 
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

xiii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date 
for the period under audit. 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xix) As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. 

xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - lA of the Reserve Bank 
of India, 1934. 

xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to 
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not 
applicable. 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' R eport on standalone financial statements (Continued) 

Annexure - II to the Independent Auditors Report 

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31,2022 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GR AKKALKOT 
SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by !CAl and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
mater ial misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 



GR AKKALKOT SOLAPUR HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Independent Auditors' Report on standalone fmancial statements (Continued) 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For JLN US & Company 
Ch~ared Accountants 
FR 1 43W 

'I 
CA Mah Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN:22400828AJLPYK3758 

Udaipur, May 19, 2022 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
ClN U45201 Rj2018PTC061051 

Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Assets 

Non-current assets 

(a) Fi nandal assets 

(i) Other financial assets 

(b) Other non-current assets 

(c) Tax a;s~ts 

Total Non-Current Assets 

Cturent assets 

(a) Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other bank balances 

(t\') Other financial assets 

(b) Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

T ota I assets 

Equity and liabilities 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(o) Other equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

(n) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

[b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

(•) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables - total outstanding dues of 

(a) micro enterp!·ises and smaii enterprises 

(b) creditors other than micro enterprises and. small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(o) Other current liabilities 

Total Current liabilities 

Total liab il ities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 

Notes to financial statements 

The notes reftrred ab<.we are an integral part of these finan.cia1 statements. 

Ref Note No. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

4 

10 

11 

12 

22 

12 

13 

14 

15 

2 - 3 

4 - 34 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 

Ouzrtcrcd Accountants 

!Jc:Jat~ 
Vikas Agarwal 

Directt,r 

CA Mahesh Menaria 

Parhli..'f 

M. No. 400828 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

DIN: 03113689 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Conipmz_l! Sccrciar1 

lCSl Memb. No. A56556 

Plac.:: Udaipur 

Date. 19 May 2022 

'! in Lakhs 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

32,232.97 26,131.92 

2,678.59 3,2..i12.40 

1,222.67 607.73 

36,13-!.23 29.992.05 

486.55 1,300.61 

4.657.66 96.72 

2,937.00 

2,229.28 8,2.57. 77 

1,1 57.88 582.47 

11,468.37 10,237.57 

47,602.60 40,229.62 

1,260.00 1,260.00 

3,940.76 1,595.19 

5,200.76 2.855.19 

38,642.00 28,852.34 

1,330.48 541.60 

39,972.48 29,393.94 

1,828.81 612.35 

507.36 6,888.64 

0.35 0.35 

92.84 479.15 

2,429.36 7,980.49 

42,401.84 37,374..13 

47,602.60 40,229.62 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

V arun Bhasin 

Adrlithmiil Dir~·ctor 

DIN: 03262761 

Place: Gurugram 

Date : 19 May 2022 

iVIahendra Kum ar Darji 

CFOaudCEO 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45201 RJ2018PTC061051 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Income 

Re\'Cnue from opt."'rations 

Other income 
Total income 

Expenses 

Construction costs 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Other C)..pcnses 
Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 

Current tah 

Adjustrrtt.).nt related to income tax pertaining to earlier periods 

Deferred la~ charge 
T ota I tax expenses 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequentl y to profit or loss 

Re-medsurements of defined benefit liability f (asset) 

Income tax relating to abo\•e 
Other comprehensive income for the year, ne t of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Eantings per share 

(Nominal value of sho re R.s.JO each) 
Basic (Rs.) 
Diluted (Hs.) 

Basis of preparation/ measurement artd significant accounting policies 

Notes on financial statements 

The notes referred abnve are an integral part of these financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US k \10 COMPANY 
Clrurtcred A~·counfanfs 

Firm's Re~;. No. 101543\V 

CA Mahesh Menari a 

Partucr 

M. 1\:o. 400828 
Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Ref Note No. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2ll 

21 

22 

22 

22 

30 
30 

2- 3 

4 - 34 

Director 

DIN: 03113689 
Place: Gumgram 
Date: 19 May 2022 

Cnnprmy Seadt11!1 

JCS! Memb. 1\:o. A56556 
Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

14,741.57 

127.5"1 

14,869.08 

8,329.56 

-U9 

3,155.45 

245.43 

"11.734.63 

3,134.45 

788.88 

788.88 

2,345.57 

2,345.57 

18.62 
18.62 

if;, Lakho 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

27,569.55 

172.91 

27,7~2.46 

25,604.56 

3.88 

1,586.74 

181.32 
27,376.50 

365.96 

(308.D1) 

387.14 
79.1.\ 

286.83 

286.8,) 

2.28 
2.28 

For and o n behalf of the Board of Directors 

Varun Bhas in 

Additiuli<ll Director 

DIN: 03262761 
Place: Gurugram 

Date: 19 May 2022 

Mahendra Kumar Darji 

CFOawiCEO 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45201RJ2018PTC061051 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Interest income 
Finance costs 

Working capital adjustments: 
(Increase) in financial and non-financial assets 
Decrease/(lncrease) in trade receivables 
(Decrease) in trade payables 
(Decrease) in other current liabilities 

Cash generated/(used in) from operating activities 
Income tax paid (net) 

Net cash (used in) operating activities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Interest received 
(Investments) in bank deposits (net) 

Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Interest paid 
Repayment of non-current borrowings 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 

Notes: 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of (refer note 8) 

Particulars 

Balances '~ith banks: 

-Current accoLmts 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equiva lents as per Statement of Cash Flows 

Ref Note No. 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

3.134.45 

(127.51) 
3.155.45 
6,162.39 

(74.16) 
814.06 

(6,381.28) 
(386.31) 
134.70 

(614.94) 
{480.24) 

127.51 
(2,937.00) 

(2,809.49) 

(2,695.74) 
(1,263.28) 
11,809.69 

7,850.67 

4,560.94 

96.72 

4,657.66 

As at 

31 March 2022 

4,657.66 

4,657.66 

4,657.66 

For the year ended 
31 March 2021 

365.96 

(172.91) 
1,586.74 
1,779.79 

(11,128.63) 
(1,300.61) 
(2,145.89) 
(3,936.37) 

(16.731.71) 
(204.43} 

(16,936.14) 

172.91 

172.91 

(1,549.52) 

18,360.96 

16,811.44 

48.21 

48.51 

96.72 

(in Lnldt> 

As at 

31 March 2021 

96.72 

96.72 

96.72 

2 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS) - 7 "Statement 
of Cash Flows". 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
CIN U45201RJ2018PTC061051 

Statemen t of Changes in Equity 
for th e yea r ended 31 March 2022 

A. Equity Share Capital 
Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April 2020 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period <'!TOrs 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

01anges in equity share capital during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

B. Other Equity 

tin L.akhs 

Number of shares Amount 

"1.26.00,000 1,260.00 

-
- -

1,26,00,000 1,260.00 

- -
- -

1,26,00,000 1,260.00 

Debenture 
Total 

Particulars Retained Earnings redemption 
Other equ ity 

Balance as at 01 April 2020 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2021 

Profit for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 2022 

Profit for the year 

Items of other comprehensive income fo r the year , net of taxes 

TrunsfC:.1r to debenture redemption reserve 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Basjs of prepdration, n1easu ren1ent and significant accounting policies 
Notes on financia l statements 

111e notes reterrect above are an mtegral par t ot U1ese tmancu\1 statetn ents 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US AND COMPAI\'Y 
Chartered Accmmtmzls 

Firm's Regn No. 101543W 

CA Mal1esh Menaria 

Partner 
M. No. 400828 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

2 - 3 
4-34 

Director 
DIN: 03113689 

Place: Gw-ugrarn 
Date: 19 May 2022 

Compnny Sccretnry 

ICSI Memb. No. A56556 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 

reserve 

1.308.34 - 1,308.34 

286.83 - 286.83 

1,595.17 - 1,595.17 

:'.,3-15.57 - 2,343.57 

(1.58000) 1,580.00 

765.57 1,580.00 2,345.57 

2,360.74 1,580.00 3,940.74 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Varun Bhasin 

Additia11al Director 

DIN: 03262761 
Place: Gurugram 

Date : 19 May 2022 

Mal1endra Kumar Darji 

CFOnlldCEO 

Place: Udaipur 

Date: 19 May 2022 



GR Akkalkot Sola pur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
for the yenr ended 31 March 2022 

1. Reporting entity 

GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited ('the Company') having Registered office at GR House, Hiran 
Magri, Sector 11, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313002 was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, India on April 26, 2018 
as a Private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') as a subsidiary of G R Infraprojects 
Limited. 

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and transfer basis, 
(''DBOT Annuity" or "Hybrid Annuity") the project relating to Four Laning of Akkalkot -Solapur section of 
NH -150E with paved shoulders from design chainage km.99.400 to km 138.352 /existing chainage from 
km.102.819 to km.141.800 (design length 38.952km.) including Akkalkot bypass (design length 7.350 km) in the 
State of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity mode. The company has entered into concession agreement with the 
National Highway Authority of India ("NHAI") dated 20th June, 2018. 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on 
May 19, 2022. 

2. Basis of preparation 

a. Statement of compliance 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies 
Act, 2013, (the 'Act'), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

Details of the Company's accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Functioual and presentation CUJ1-etlC1J 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

c. Basis of measuremeut 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using acoual basis of accounting except 
certain financial instruments measured at fair values. 

d. Use of estimates and judgmellts 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are revievved on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accow1ting 
estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes: 



GR Akkalkot Sola pur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Recognition of Current j Deferred tax expense 
Revenue recognition under service concession arrangement 
Provision for doubtful debts 

e. Measurement of fair values 

Some of the Company's accounting policies and disclosmes require the measurement of fair values, for 
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

TI1e Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values . This 
includes a financial reporting team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value 
measurements, including Level3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer. 

The financial reporting team regularly revievvs significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. 
If third party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial 
reporting team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these 
valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the 
valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 
valuation techniques as follows. 

Levell: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
Level 3: inputs for fue asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, fue Company uses observable market data as far 
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 
fue fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of 
the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measmement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following 
notes: 

Investments 
Financial instruments 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

3. Significant accounting polices 

a. Foreign currency transaction 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company 
at the exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates 
the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the ftmctional 
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the 
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange 
differences are recognised in profit or loss. 

b. Financial instruments 

Initial recoguition and measurement 

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset and financial liability is initially measured 
at fair value except Trade receivable which is measured at transaction price in accordance ·with lnd AS 
115. Transaction price that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and 
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and 
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction price directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right (not 
contingent on future events) to off-set the recognised amounts either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition 
or issue. 

11 Classification and subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified based on assessment of 
business model and contractual cashllows in which they are held. 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

amortised cost; 
FVOCI - debt investment; 
FVOCI -equity investment; or 
FVTPL 



GR Akkalkot Sola pur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

At amortized cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVfPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect conh·actual 
cash flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

At fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

At present, the Company does not have investments in any debt securities classified as FVOCI. 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as 
FVOCI - equity investment) . This election is made on an investment by investment basis. 

At fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at 
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVfPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 
mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any 
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised 
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. 

Financial assets: Busiuess model assessment 

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is 
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is 
provided to management. The information considered includes: 

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in 
practice. These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual 
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the 
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising 
cash flows through the sale of the assets; 
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's 

(and the financial assets held 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are 
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent >vith the Company's continuing recognition of the 
assets. 

Assessmeut wlzether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 
Further, management also evaluates whether the contractual cash flows are solely payment of 
principal and interest considering the contractual terms of the instrument. 

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on 
initial recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit 
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other 
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the 
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash 
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers: 

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 
terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; 
prepayment and extension features; and 
terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flo·ws from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse 
features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 
prepayment amount substantially represents w1paid amounts of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early 
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or 
premium to its contractual paramount, a feah1re that permits or requires prepayment at an amount 
that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest 
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as 
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial 
recognition. 

Financial assets: Subsequent measuremeut and gains and losses 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
profit or loss. 

Financial assets 
amortised cost 

Equity investments 
FVOCI 

at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment 
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are 
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly 
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net 
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit 
or loss. 
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Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or F\TfPL. A financial liability is 
classified as at F\TfPL if it is classified as held-for-h·ading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as 
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and 
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any 
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss. 

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of loan to the extent 
it is probable that some or all of the loan facility will be drawn down. The facility fee and related 
payments are accounted for as a transaction cost under Ind AS 109. The said facility fee is deferred 
and treated as a transaction cost when draw -down occurs; it is not amortised prior to the draw-down. 

iii. Derecognition 

Financial assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire, or it h·ansfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or 
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. Further, the contractual terms of the 
existing financial assets are substantially modified, such modification is treated as the derecognition of 
original financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. Such newly recognized financial 
asset is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference in respective carrying amount, if 
any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the modification of a financial asset does not 
result in its derecognition, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is recalculated at 
original effective interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but 
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and revvards of the transferred assets, the transferred 
assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 
cancelled or expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows 
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the 
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

iv. Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet 
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts 
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

c. Operati11g cycle 
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d. Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs 
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials 
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its 
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they 
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of 
profit and loss. 

ii. Subsequeut expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

iii. Derecognitio11 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecogriized on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The consequential gain or loss 
is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item 
and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iv. Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives as prescribed under schedule II of the Act. 

e. Intangible assets 

i. Recognition and measurement 
Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such 
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 

iii. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in 
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

derecognised. 
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iv. Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible assets less their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation 
and amortisation in financial statement. 

f. Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items 
held for use in civil construction work and/ or production of inventories are not written down below cost 
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The 
cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost method, and includes expendihlre incurred in 
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to 
their present location and condition. 

In the case of manufactured irlVentories and work-in-progress, cost includes direct materials and labour 
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on 
weighted average cost method. Trading goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is 
determined on weighted average cost method basis. 

g. Impairmeut 

Impainuent of financial instmments 

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on: 
financial assets measured at amortised cost; 
contract assets recognised under contract with customers; and 
financial assets measured at FVOCI including debt investments. 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 
significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more; 
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise; 
it is probable that the borrovver will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; 

or 
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except 
for bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the 
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, which are measured as 
12 month expected credit losses. 
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In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum 
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.vv11en determining whether the 
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly sinceinitial recognition and when estimating 
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is 
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit 
assessment and including forvvard looking information. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 
Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured 
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the 
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet. 
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 

ii Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are revie·wed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together 
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates 
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to selL Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value 
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 

The Company's corporate assets (e.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) 
do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable 
amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment 
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amoLmt of any goodwill 
allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or 
group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

In respect of other assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the 
Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or 
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset's carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 



GR Akkalkot Sola pur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

h. Employee benefits 

Slzort-term employee benefits 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g . Under short­
term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

1. Provisions and contingencies (other than for employee benefits) 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
(representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance 
sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. 
The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not 
provided for. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. I£ it is 
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision 
is reversed." 

"Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses." 

Contingencies 
Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not require an outtlow of resources embodying economic benefits or the 
amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 'vVhen there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outtlow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, 
no provision or disclosure is made. 

j. Revenue from contracts with customer 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are 
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to 
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that 
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It 
excludes taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. 

Service Concession An-angement 
Service concession arrangements (SCA) refers to the arrangement between the grantor (a public sector 
entity) and the operator (a private sector entity) to provide service that give the public access to major 

economic and social facilities utilising private sector funds and expertise. 

With respect to the SCA, revenue and cost are allocated between those relating to the construction 
services and those related to the operation and maintenance services, and accounted for separately. 
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users of the public service. The financial asset is used when the Company has an unconditional right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. 

Design-Build-Operate-Transfer (DBOT) contracts on hybrid annuity basis contain three streams of 
revenue- Construction revenue, Financing income and Operations and maintenance (O&M) income. The 
construction stream of DBOT revenues are accounted for in the construction phase of DBOT, O&M 
income is recognised in the operating phase of the DBOT, while fin;;mce income is recognised over a 
concession period based on the imputed interest method. 

Revenue from construction of contracts is recognised by applying percentage of completion method after 
providing for foreseeable losses, if any. percentage of completion method is determined as a proportion of 
the cost incurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any 
on the contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of 
completion of the contract. While determining the amount of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and 
related incidental income not included in contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is 
reflected at cost that are expected to be recoverable till such time the outcome of the contract cannot be 
ascertained reliably and at realisable value thereafter. 

Contract balances 
Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer 
e.g. unbilled revenue. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the 
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset i.e. unbilled revenue is recognised 
for the earned consideration that is conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the 
rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Company issues an invoice to the Customer. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only 
the passage of time is required before payment of consideration is due. 

Contract liabilities 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company 
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities 
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Others 
Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

k. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset, the Company assesses whether (i) the contract involves the use of identified asset; (ii) the 
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of 
lease and (iii) the Company has right to direct the use of the asset. 

a) As a lessee 

Lease term is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate 
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses judgement 
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options). 
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incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the 
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying 
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the 
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the 
useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by 
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re measurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discotmted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if 
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the 
commencement date, lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the 
lease payment made. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including 
in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the 
exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments 
in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise .an extension option. 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a 
lease agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re­
measurement of the lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on 
modification is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the 
scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with 
the stand-alone selling price are accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications, 
discounting rates used for measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted. 

Short-term leases and leases of lm.v-value assets 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of 
all the assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which 
the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

b) As a lessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. When the terms of 
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is 
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

l. Recoguition of iuterest iucome or expense, Insurance claim received 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial instrument to: 

the gross canying amount of the financial asset; or 
the amortised cost of the financial liability. 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be admitted 
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 
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m. I nco me tax 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except 
to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in OCI. 

Curre11t tax 
Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of 
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes . It is measured using tax rates (and tax 
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis 
or simultaneously. 

ii Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences beh-veen the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that 
future tCLxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company 
recognises a deferred tax asset only to the exten t that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or 
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such 
deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable 
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the maimer in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a 
net basis or their tax assets a11d liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

Any tax credit available is recognised as deferred tax to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credit can be utilized. The said asset is 
created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and loss and shown under the head of deferred tax. 
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The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable 
right to set off the recognized amow1ts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax 
liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding 
current tax assets against cunent tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company. 

n. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial 
period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other 
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

o. Eamings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equ ity shares outstanding during the 
period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods 
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equ ity sha res 
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

In a capitalisation or bonus issue or a share split, ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders for no 
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the 
proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the 
beginning of the earliest period presented 

p. Operati11g segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Company. 

q. Cash aud cash equivale11ts 

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in 
hand, bank balances, w1encumbered demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three 
months or less and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on 
demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a component of 
cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement. 

"Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits / (Loss) before tax is adjusted for 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 
payments and item of expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated." 
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r. Stmufanfs notified but not yet effective 
Following are the amendments to existing standards (as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
on 23rd March, 2022) which are effective for annual periods beginning after 1st April 2022. The Company 
intends to adopt these standards or amendments from the effective date, as applicable and relevant. These 
amendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements. This 
assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further 
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Company when it will adopt the 
respective standards. 

Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - For items produced during testing/trail phase, 
clarification added that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss and considered as part of cost of PPE. 
Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets - Provisions on what constitutes 
cost of fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not) is included. 
Ind AS 41 Agriculture - This aligns the fair value measurement in Ind AS 41 with the requirements 
of Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement to use internally consistent cash flows and discount rates and 
enables preparers to determine whether to use pre-tax or post-tax cash flmvs and discount rates for 
the most appropriate fair value measurement. 
Ind AS 101 - First time Adoption of Ind AS - Measurement of Foreign Currency Translation 
Difference in case of subsidiary/associate/ JV's date of transition to Ind AS is subsequent to that of 
Parent. 
Ind AS 103 - Business Combination - Reference to revised Conceptual Framework is included. For 
contingent liabilities/ levies, clarification is added on how to apply the principles for recognition of 
contingent liabilities from Ind AS 37. Recognition of contingent assets is not allowed. 
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it 
applies the '10 per cent' test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 
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3. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of Ind AS 7: tin L1k/r; 

Non-current borrolvvings 

Current borro\vings 

Non-current borro\·dngs 

Current borrowings 

4 Figures in brackets represent outtlows. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes on finandal statements 

-------A~s-a-t------------------------------------------------~A-s_a_t ____ __ 

Net cash flow Others 
1 April 2021 31 March 2022 

28,852.311 9,'113.95 675.71 38,642.00 

612.35 1,216.46 1,828.81 
Total 29,464.69 9,113.95 1,892.17 40,470.81 

======~==========~======================== 

~d ~d 
Net cash flow Others 

1 A pri I 2020 31 March 2021 
11 ,090.18 16.811.44 950.72 28,852.34 

41.95 570.40 612.35 

Total 11,132.13 16,811 .44 1,521.12 29,464.69 
========================================~== 

2-3 
4 - 34 

The notes referred above are an integral part oi these financial statements 
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Other financial assets (Unsecured consid ered good) 

Particulars 

Non--<:urrent 

Right to rect-ive annu ity from concession grantor 

Current 

l~ight to r£-ceive ,mnuity from concession grantor 
S..·curity and 0tll€.'r dt.·po:;its 
Others 

Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Non-current 

Balance with !:!:0\·ernment authorih~ 

GST input recei\'Jbl(' 

Current 

Advance to s upplier~ for good~ and servJCes 
Prepaid expenses 
Balanct' with goverr.ment authorities 

CST input recei,~aHe 

CST TDS recl~ivab!e 

Tax ass~ts 

Particulars 

Non-current 

Ad vane<" income tax { n<"l of. p rO\.-ision fo r tax) 

Ref Note No. 

28 

28 

Ref Note. No. 

Ref Note No. 

tin Lakh:; 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

32.232.97 26,131.92 
32,232.97 26,131.92 

2,221 .o=' 8,257.77 

2.49 
5.14 

2.229.28 8,'257.77 

tin L·r.~hs 

As Jt As at 

31 1\-l.uch zor 31 March 2021 

2,678.59 3,252.40 
2,678.59 3,252.40 

tl.01 
!355 0 50 

250.70 
893.62 581.97 

1,157.88 58247 
3,836.47 3,834.87 

f!l! L1khs 

As at A s at 

31 March 2022 31 March Z021 

I ,222.o7 607.73 
I,222.o7 607.73 

~ 
.I 



Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Current 

T radc receivables 
Less: expected credit ius~ f nliowance for doubtbl debts 

Break-up of Security details 

Secur~d , considered good 

Unse<:url!d, considered good 
Trade Re<:e i\•ablt-s t-.'hich have significant increase in credit rh;k 

Trade Receiv<tbles ·credit impaired 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 

Balance as at begni ng of the year 

Add; Allowance for the year 

Less: Adjustment during the yeu 
Balance a ~ at end of the year 

Ref Note No. As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

486.55 1,300.61 

48655 1,300.61 

4&6.55 1,300.61 

486.55 1,300.61 

Bela\.,. is Trade receivables ageing schedule based on oustan . .:d::.in"'g"-"'fr.::oc:::n.:..' d::.u::.e.:...::d::.at.::e...:o::.f.s.p.::a'-yn::.':.:•::.n.:._t ::----::--:--:-::--:----:--:-:---,:--:--:------------­
Outstnnding for following periods from due date of p.1yment 

31 March 2022 

Undisput~d Trad~ Recei\'ables- considered good 

Undisputt?d Tradt? Receivables- which have significant 
increase in credit risk 
Undisputed Trade receivabl~ - nedit impajred 
Disputt?d TrJ.d~ r«eh·able~- considered good 
Disputed Trade recei\·ables - cred1t imp<lir~d 
Total 

31 March 20~1 

Undisputed Trad~ Receivablt-s- considered good 
Undisputed Trade Recei\·ables- which have significant 
in.crease in credit risk 

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired 
Disputed Trade r~eivables- considered £:ood 
Disputed Tr<tde receivables- cred it impaired 

Total 

Notes: -

a) Trade Recei\'ab!es ilre non interest bearing. 

Current but 
not due Less than 6 6 months - More than 3 

month 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years 
Tot.ll 

409.47 36.33 40.75 4R6.55 

409.47 36.33 -!0.75 486.55 

1,275.13 l,JOO.ol. 

1,275.13 25.48 1.,300.61. 

b) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other oihcers of the company either severaliy or jointly with any ot.her person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due 
from firm~ or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner. a director or a mernber 

Retention money relating to construction contracts are included ir:. above trade r.teeivables as they are recoverable within the operating cycle of the Company 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Retention money 

Cash an d cash equivalents 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Balance with banks 

in current accounts 

Deposits w ith original maturity of les~ than three mcmths 

9 Other bank bdlances 

Particulars Ref Note No. 

Deposits with remaining maturity IC'Ss than 12 months# 

#Deposits lien tdth banks/ lenders against Debt Service Reserve Account (DSR.A.) and Major Maintenance Reserve Account (fvL\.U{A) 

As at 

31 March 2022 

~67.41 

267.41 

As at 

31 March 2022 

351.36 
4,3!)6.30 
4,657.6o 

As at 

31 M>rch 2021 

sn.72 
571.72 

t in LnJ.:Jzs 

As at 

31 March 2021 

96.72 

96.72 

f w L1khs 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

2,937.00 
2,937.0(1 

2,186.00 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financia l statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

10 Equity Share capi tal 

Particulars 

Authorised 

1,26,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 eo<h 

lssued, subscribed and paid up 

1.26,00,COO equity shares of Rs . 10 t'a<h 

Reconciliation of equity share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Particulars 

At the commencern~nt of the year 
1\dd: 18-sued during th~ ye~r 
At the end of the ve:lr 

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company 

Particulars 

Equity share of R.s. 10 each fully paid-up held by 

G R 1n(raprojects Limited ( Parent Company) 

Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

31 March 2022 

Numbers Amount 

1,26,00,000 1,260.00 

1.26,00,000 1.260.00 

31 March 2022 

1,26,00,000 

% of total share 
in class 

100.00 

As at Mach 31, 2022 
Promoter name 

G R lilfraprojecls Limited 

Terms & Rights attached to equity shares: 

No. of 
Sh;ues 

1,26,00,GOO 

'%:ofto!J.l 

shares 

LOO.OO 

G/11 Change 
during the year 

No. of 
Shares 

1,26,00.000 

As at 

31 March 2022 

1,260.00 
1_260.00 

1,260.00 

1,260.00 

~in Lnkhi 

As at 

31 !\.larch 2021 

1.260.00 
1.260.00 

1,260.00 

1,260.00 

?iu Lakfli 

31 March 2021 

Numbers Amount 

1,26,Cil,OOO 1,260.00 

1,26,00,000 1,260.00 

31 March 2021 

Numbers ~'o of total share in 
class 

1,26,00,000 100.00 

As at Mach 31, 2021 
~~of total 

sh.ues 

100.00 

0.'¢ Change during the 
year 

The Company h1l~ a single cltlss of t-qUlt}' shares. Ac~ordingly, all equity shart-s rank E'qually ~'· ith regard lo d ividends and share in L~e Company'~ residualtlssets. The 
equity shart!s ar~ entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) art! in proportion to 
its shtlre of the paid-up equity c,,pital of the Company. Voting righ ts cannot l>t! exf.' rcised in respect of shares on which any call or o ther sums present ly payable have not 
been paid.Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. 

On \vinding ur of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residuai asse ts of the Company, remaining after dishibution of all preferential 
amounts in proportion to the numbt~ of equity shares held. 

11 Other equity 

Particul.us 

Balance as at 1 April 2020 

Total Comprehensio.·e Income for the year 

Profit for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 M.u 2022 

Profit for the year 

Items of other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxes 

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Balance a.s at 31 ~-1drch 2022 

Debenture redemption reserve {'ORR') 

Retained 
Earnings 

1,308.36 

286.83 
1,595.19 

2,3-15.57 

(1,580.00) 

2,360.76 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve 

l,580.0ll 

1,580.00 

;.•in Ln.i.J:s 

Total 

1,308.36 

286.83 
1,595.19 

2,3-!5.57 

3,940.76 

The resen·e is created for redemptlon of n0n..-convertible debentures in accordance with the sub-secti0n (.t) of section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 0ut of pwfits of the 
CPmpcmy available for d ividend distribution. Pursuant to Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Amendment Rules, 2019 dated l b August :2019, th~ requirement fnr 
creation of DRH. for listed c0mpany i:. done away ,.,.-ith. Accordingly, the Company has transferred the accumulated ORR balance to Retained Earnings. 

I 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

12 Non cu_rrent borrowings 

Partkulars 

Secured Loans- From Banks 

Bank of Maharashtra 

HDFC Bank 

Loan Indian Bank 

Loan Union Ban.k of indic1 

Debentures- Secured 

Senior, Listed, Rat('d, Secured, Red('{'mable Non Con vertible Deben tures 

Unsecured: 

Loan fron1 G R lnfrap rojects Limited (Parent Company) 

Total 

Non-Current portion of long ten:n borrowings 
Current maturities of long t£>rm borrowings 

Notes: 

Debt Covenants: 

Ref Note No. As at 

31 March 2022 

15,9734~ 

15.973.44 

16,036.50 
16,(136.50 

8,460.87 
8.460.87 

40.470.81 

38.642.00 
1,828.81 

•!0,1170.81 

As at 

31 March 2021 

4,660.52 

7.954. 19 

5,ll98.80 

4,700.00 

22,413.51 

7,051.1 8 
7,051 .1 8 

29,46H9 

28,852.3-~ 

612 .35 
29.46-t 69 

Non-current lxnrowi.ngs contains debt covenent~ relating to debH:!quity rJtio. debt cm•er11ge ratio, inh:res t coverage mtio and tot,1! debts to net h'orth ratio. 11u? 
Company has c:.atis£icd. all the debts con~nJnt~ prescribt•d tn the terms of respecli\'e loan/ debenture agrerment as c1t n~porti.'lg date. 

Undrawn bt.'HTO\'-·ing fc1cil ity 

Disclosure of uncl..rawn borrowing faciliti~ {t-"cludi..•1g non-fund b11st.>d fc1ciliti~) h1wards fut-ure projects to 'be e>.ecuted by tht.> C:ompll.ny is Nil. 
( 31 March 2021 Rs 8.783 lakhs) 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial s tatemen ts (continued) 
ft'r l'ht• ~~car endt•d 31 Mmch 2022 

"12.1 Borrowinr~s (cont-inut•d) 

Note: Nature of security, intert•s t n11c, rcpa vm e nt term ~ .:md olhl:r in format1on for blJTTVWi n~s. 

Sr Nn P,uticulars 

(t\) St!curcd l ot~ n s from b;w ks 

(1) IIDFC B~1nk 

(ii) lndbn B.mk 

(lii) 13cmk of tvla iMr<lshlra 

(1\') Union Bank of lndJil 

Total 

15,973.44 

31 MJrch 2022 

Non­
Current 

'J:).392. tl5 

(1') St!mnr, L1 .-; \"ed, J<r~ted. Secured, 16,036.50 14,789.08 

Redt•cmttbl e Ntm Convertible 

Ddx·nture~ 

(B) Unsce:urccl lo<tns from ntlu.•r 

Lonn from C I{ lnfraprojt•cts J..irnitt•d 
(P<ll'l'nl C\unpn n y) 

32,0119.94 JO,l8J.13 

8 ..1 60.87 8,•160.87 

Curr~nt Tol'il l 

:581.39 7.954.19 

5,098.80 

fl,66052 

·1,'?00 00 

1.247.42 

1,828$1 22,4U51 

31 Man:h 2021 

Non­
C u rrt." n t 

7,716_()1~ 

!1,9~'7.21 

-1.5J'i 46 

4,589.~l5 

21,801:16 

7,051."1:i 7,051.1 3 

C urrt."nt 

c37.c5 

1:'!.1.59 

'J.B.U6 

110.45 

612.35 

8,460.87 S,4btl.87 7, fi51.1S ._7_.1_15_1_.1_1< ___ _ 

<10,470.81 38,MZM ·- 1,8~8.8J- 29,46-1.(;,;···· 28,85234 1)12.35 

Securi ty 

F1r~t d 1argcs bv \.V-'Y of hypt'thct·,Hit'n of a ll liw f1 x\:d ,,ss\~ts j McJ\'al"~ic asset ~ pn.,jeds 
bvuk debt.s, uperatin~ cash rl uw, rcccn•abiL• . rcvt•nuc w hatever nalul'l!, uncalled C<lJ.'i t·a\, 
rrojt•c:ts ban\, <ln:oun t ;:, nd As!> if~TllllC IH \ )f .. ,rr the CR Al,ka lko t S\J iapur Hi~~hw.ly Priatc 
LmHh.• ll'~ right, m s \lrim ('C' ~'\)l ic il' S ,1 nd interes t und l~r a ll t lw ag rl~l'll'H.'nt rt'l a tl'd to the 
l:'rojccb ~md gu~r,mh:c o r p crhtrm,1nCl: l"hmd provid~~d l"~y ;my p.ut-y f\)f any \·ontr.ll"l 

rclat·cd to the prujc<: ts in f,ntour or th e bt.lrrowcr, pledg~ o f 51% equity s hare:.. 

Fir:;t chnrg_t.'S by way o( h y pllthecilli ..:m t'f <:~ II the fi xed a.ssets /Mtwa hl l' assets prujecls 

h<ltlk dt>bL.;;. opPrulin~; c.,~h fluw, rel'Ctva hlt• , rt•vt•ntte whJll'Vl'l' nature, um·,, [Jed cap1tal, 

Pmjt•c:ts b;ml~ <lccounl ,md Assif1Hnh~ nt \lt .111 tlw G J{ Ak k,l lkot SoiJ pur High.,.~··' }' Pn:.~tt• 

Lunitt'd's rig ht. msm ance policit's .md tntert:sl under <11l the agn!~nll'llt rl' la t~!d to the 

proji.~t l:io and g uM<mlec or pt~ rfllrmnm:e lxmd pwvid~!d hy any pa rty fur any Cl•ntracl 

rl..•l<.~tl•d lo th e pru)l'dS in f,wour \'f th1..• bMrowe r, pll•dge of 51% equity s har1..•s. 

Firs t chMge~ by wny 0i hy po llwc;:ttJon 0f a ll the fixt'd <:~Ssl' l S I Muvablc .lSsets proft~l:b 

bot'k de bts, tlpl!r ,l llfl~ cash th\W , l'l'<.:elvablc, revenut' wiMtever n<l lun•, uncall ed Ccl pil <l l. 

.Pn'J~XIS lnnk ilC\:l'Unt a nd Ass t ~~nmenl t'f a ll th t.• CR Akkalkot St•l<1pur Highwa" PrMk 
Limitt·!d 's right , insur,mc\~ pllli..::J es <:~ nd intt~H·s t under ail lh1: .lgrt'emtml re la tt>d to llw 

prujcc ls fllld b tlill'.J I'lkl' ()I' perfornl <lf lCl' bNllf pr0v ided by <l OY p<:~rty fl' l' illlY ( Oilt"t'ac\ 

reltll ed to lhl' pE'llJCds in hl\'llllf of the borrmwr, plt~d gt• ~1f 5'J % equ il)' ~ hart!S . 

Ftr~ t chnrgt!s by way 0f hypothccn tion of all the ftxcd assets /Mcw<~bl c as~c t·-; projects 
hn,lk d~·bts. open1lin~; ci\:: h flow, re~·ctVi\hle , l'l'V l' IHte w hall'Vl! r nature , um',l lled G1p1tal, 

Projl•cts bank i\l'C.'Ount .md .As~ignnwnt o ( i\ ll llw C f{ r\kk,l lkot So la pur l"li);hwily Pnat1..· 

Lmutl~d ·~ n ght, msunmce policit'<; a_nd tnl crc:o;t under nil th<~ a~,;reenwnt rd.1 ted t<' the 

projer t..- ,md guara ntee tlr pt! rt'~lnnmKe bond pwvidt!d by any pi! rt y fo r d O}' cr•ntrcKL 
reb ted to the ~,roJl'C I S in (,wour t'f the borrower, plcd~;e o( 51 % l~tp tit y s hares . 

Firs t c!Mrge::; by way of hypothccJtion o f all the fi xed asset.; /Mov.-tble <'L"se ts proj~CI !' 

book debts, tlpcrtlting cash fi t'\\', rl'cdval>le , r~~venul! whcllt~Vt~r IMI111'l' , unca lled l'ilpif,,L 
Pn'J~x t.s b.mk fiC\'Ptllll nnd A~s i ~;nmenl of a ll the GR AkJ...alkPl S;,'l<l p ur HighwCty l>riat e 

Limited's right , i n~ urance p(llt CJC!' a nd inten~s t undl' r a ll Lh t> ,,g rt•c nwnl. relnl:ed to tht' 
projects and gun r,mlt:e o r p L'rformance bt,nd prov ided by i'l ny pa rt y for nny ronlr<~rl 

rclillcd ltl tiH' pn'J<.>t:ts m fa\'nur of tlh~ borrtl\\'\~L pled ge o t !).J ~ ... l!qui ly shares. 

Unsecured 

~ 

? ;,, Lnklls 

R~pnymen t terms 

RepclYinl'nt in '27 hcllf· n•nd y ins lflllnwnt hlr ('>..J ::hng 

Juan rL'fin<lflCCd fu r thl! k •illl !'C F'<:~y mcnt r:~nging 

fro m 2.97'X. tu 4.86% of loan tak('ll , .a long wit h 

monthly interes t rclte from 6.'25'~ p.a . 

l~cpaynwn t '2.'7 ha lf· .\'l'Miy ins tal lment comnwncc 

pt•st tornplctwn o( morcllOrJulll JX'I'iod pl)Sl COD 
r3ngmg from 2 35 '~. lo 4.75% of k\;lJ) taken ' cl k'ng 
\.,.·tth rnonthl}' int1..·re~t rnlc~ 8.2fJ'\', p.a 

Rt-pay mcnl 27 hillf.·y~~a rly ins tallm~~nt <.:ommcnn~ 

pu~l Ct'm plelJon of rnoraLNlUrn p\mOd pos t COD 
ril nging from 2.35-::. Ill •1.75';.;, uf locm lilhn , along 
wllb n1llnlhly tllh' rt~sl r.Jtf.:' 8 20':;, p.<l 

1\cpilyment 2'/ half·yCclrly msta!lmc nt commence 
pt''>l l..'ornplcli,,n o( mor,,torium pcnod pn::l COD 
r~1n gi ng from :?. 35'}1, lo 4 .'i't;';lc.,. ol lt•nn t.1kc n , ,,\t'ng 

with month ly inle n: '>t mle 8.20 '\', p.a 

Rcpctymcnt in 27 half·y ectrl y ins ti'l llmcnl fo r ex1s Lm g 
loMl rct·i n,mn•d for the loan n.-'p<lyml~nt riln~;tn[!, 

!rom 2 97'i:, lt\ 4 ~h % of loan lclken , ,, long with ha lf­
Yt~i'lrly mt crc~t ratt! from ~ os·::. p . <~ . 

lb lt• of ln1t•n•st ~1 .00 •;;. for ll w ye~lr 20::?.-J -22, l'hL· 

s.lmt~ ~ ! Mil bt• delt•rm bkd on c1 V('<~dy bnsis ns pt•r 

!he cost of fu nds n ( the Pn ri.'nt Compa n v 

Tt•rms a nd SNir<.:t:: of repayment : J~epayable fnm1 

llh~ c,\sh flows ava iJ ,,bl\~ nfler mPeting the senior 
dt•bt •1bli~nli(m, in line with lhC' '"''ill\~rfall 

m edmnis rn a~ per d ('scribed undl'r the Cnnces~10 n 

Ap, n·crncnt I Common l..oan Agret•mt•nt and 

Esc:r\1w A\~rr.-\mwnt . 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financia l statements {continued) 
for the year ended 31 March "OC2 

13 Trade pay ab ies 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of 

Micro entt>rpris~ and small rnterprises (refer note below) 
Creditors 0ther than micro entt-rprises and sm<lll entE:'rpri:;e.s: 

Ageing for trade payable.s fro m due date 

As at 31 Mar :!022 

Undisputed creditors othc:r than micro ente-rprises and smaH enterprise~ 
Disputed creditor:> other than micro ent;;'rprises and small enterprises 
Undisputed Mit.:r\1 enlfnpri::.es and smai! enterprises 
Disputed Micro t•nterpris~ and snMII enterprises 
Tota l 

As at 31 Mar 20!1 

Gndisputed creditNs other than micro entl;!rprises and small enterprises 
Disputed cred<tors other t!ldn miLTo enterprises cmd !tmall enterpri5~5 
Undisputed Micro enterpri:-t-s and smail t"nterpriSt"s 
Dispt~ted ivlicro enterprises and ~m.1 ll enterprises 
Tota l 

Notes:· 

a) Trade p.:tyilbl~ are non i..nter~st b~aring dnd gt!nera11y have credit period of 3()..91) da_y5. 
b) For terms and conditions relating to r~lated party receivables, refer Note 23 
c) Total outstanding dues. of l\·1icro and sm~ll enterpri.~s 

Trade payables. 
Payabl~ to rel<1ted parties 

d) Detail::; of dues to micro and small enterpri~ as defined lUld~ the ~·lSi\·I.ED Act. 2006 

Particulars 

The pdncipal amount u.nd the interest due thert:'\.m (to be sho~-..·n sep.:tr(ltely) remaining w1paid 
to any supplier at the end of each accountin_g vear; 
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms ot sntion 16 of the l\'licro, Small and 
~·Iedium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 (27 of 2006), along .... .-ith the amotmt of the 
paymt~nt made to the supplier bevond the appomted day during each accounting year; 
Thf?' amount of mteres.t due and payable for the peril-xi of dt~ la~ in making payment (w hich ha !:> 
been paid but beyond the dppointed day during the yedr) but without adding the interest 
specified under the !~.:Hero, SxnaU and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006; 

The amow1t uf interest accrued and remaini:.:g unpaid at the end of each accounting y~ar; and 

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable C\'f:l1 in the succt.:.eding years, until 
such date \·vhen th~ interest du~s above are actuall)' paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure undc:r section 23 of the f\1icro, Small and 
!-,:fediurn Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Ref Note No. 

Less than 1 
yc.l.r 

507.36 

507.36 

less than 1 
year 

68-'l%4 

6,888.64 

(it: Lakhs 

As a t As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

507.36 6,8S8.M 
507.36 6,8.."8.04 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Tota.l 
yea rs 

507.36 

507.36 

1-2 yea rs 2-3 years Mor~ than 3 Total 
years 

6,888.6-l 

6,888.6-l 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
? ir. Li1khs o! 1n Lzkhs 

31 M arch 2022 31 March 2021 

The disclosure m respect of the ~.mount payable to enterprises which have provided good~ and services to the Company and which qualiiy under the defir.ition of micro 
and small enterprises, as defined under ~licro, Small artd Medium Enterpri5es Development Act, 2006 has been made in the standalone financial statements as at the 
reporting date based on the mformation received and available with the Company On the bas-is of such information, no interest is pap:.hle to any micro, small and medium 
enterptises. 

14 Other f inancial lia bilities 

Particulars 

Employee rel.atcJ iiabilities 

15 O ther current liab ilities 

Particul ars 

Custc1mer ad\·ances 
Statutory liabilitv 

TDS payable 

Ref Not·e No. 

Ref Note No. 

As at As .1t 

31 March 2022 31 M,mh 2021 

0.35 fl.35 

0.35 0.35 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

379.93 

92.84 99.>? 
92.84 479.15 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued} 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

16 Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Revenue from contracts ·with customers 

Revenue from contracts with custom.ers (Utilit.v) 

Revenut' from contrncts with cu5-tmners (COS) 

Revenue from contracts with custome-rs (Claim) 

Finance income 

17 Other income 

Particulars 

Interest income 

-on deposits with ba nks 
- on Mobilisation advances to Parent Company 

18 Civil construction costs 

Particulars 

Civil sub-contract charges 
Civil sub-contract charges - (Utility) 
Civil sub-contract charges - (COS) 
Civil sub-contract charges - (Claim) 
Civil sub-contract charges (O&~vi) 
Labour Cess 

19 Employee benefits expenses 

Particul ars 

Salaries and \Vages 

20 Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest on Bonowing 
- ba ... '1ks 
- others 
-debentures 

Interest on mobilisation advances 
Other borrowi..'1g cost 

21 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Ins-urance expens~s 
Independent engineers fees 
Payment tu auditors (refer note (i) below) 
Legal and professiona I charges 
\>liscellaneous expenses 
Electricity expenses 
Bank charges 
Annual custody tees 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note N o. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

8,301.23 

5~0. 13 

9.53 
5,890.68 

H,741.57 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

127.51 

127.51 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

7,464.87 
512.2-± 

9.07 
223.21 
120.17 

8,329.56 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

4.19 
4.19 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

1,781 .64 
753.64 
304.98 

43.48 
271.71 

3,15~.45 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

60.52 

128.03 
0.60 

33.42 

6.22 

16.09 
0.09 

0.45 
245.43 

(ii! Lnkfls 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

24,318.19 

826.71 

643.46 

1007 
1,771.12 

27,569.55 

( i11 Lakhs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

0.1 2 

172.79 
172.91 

f m Lakhs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

24,046.67 
797.06 
643.46 

9.97 

107.40 
25,604.56 

( i11 Lakhs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

3.88 
3.88 

<! m Lakhs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

1.133.65 
378.80 

65.62 
8.66 

1,586.74 

tin f..tlkh:;; 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

28.84 

109.96 
0.70 

41.33 
0.03 

0.45 
181.32 

""- j 
I 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(i) Payment to auditors 

Particulars 

PtJyment to auditors {exclusive of GST) 
-as auditor 

-Statutory audit 
- Otht•r services 

22 Tax expense 

A. Income tax (income) I expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

Current tax 

Current ta'< on profit for the year 

Deferred tax 
Atfnbutlib!e /{!-

Origination and reversal of teJnporarv differences {refer note D) 
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and Joss 

B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

Particulars 

Profit before tax 

Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate 

Effect of: 

Impact of ta~ ordinance 

Expenses disJIIowable as per normal income tax 

Taxation in respect of earlier yeRrs 

Others 

Tax expense 

C. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 

As on 31 March 2022 

I\olovement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax b.ase in measurement of financial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service concession income 

Unused tax losses 

Net deferred tax (assets) I liabilities 

As on 31 March 2021 

Movement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base in measurement of financial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service C{lncession income 

Unused tclX losses 

Net deferred tax (assets) I liabilities 

Ref Note No. 

Deferred tax (assets) 

(173.22} 

(173.22} 

Deferred tax (assets) 

(497.14) 

(497.14) 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

0.60 

0.60 

31 March 2022 

788.!\8 
788.88 

31 March 2022 

3,134.45 

788.88 

788.88 

Deferred tax 
liabilities 

29.74 

1.473.96 

1,503.70 

Deferred tax 
liabilities 

67.62 

971.12 

1,038.74 

Deferred tax asset has been recognised as it is reasonc1bly certain that the deferred tax asset shall be realised against future ta>..able incomes. 

~i11 Lnklrs 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

0.30 
0.40 
0.70 

31 March 2021 

(308.01) 

387.14 

79.13 

31 March 2021 

365.96 

92.10 

295.0-! 

(30801) 

79.13 

Net deferred tax 
(assets) I liabilities 

29.74 

1.473.96 

(173.22) 

1,330.48 

Net deferred tax 
(assets) I liabilities 

67.62 

971.12 

(497.14) 

541 .60 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

D. Recognised deferred tax (assets) and liabilities 

As on 31 March 2022 

l\rtovement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in ca rry ing value J.nd tax base in measurement of financ ial 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service concession income 

Unused tax losses 

As on 31 March 2021 

1\-fovement in temporary differences 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and ta-x base in measurement of finnncia l 
instrument at amortised cost 

Service concession income 

Unused tilx losses 

\-LAT credit entitlement 

E. Unused tax losses 

Particulars 

AY 2019-20 

AY 2020-21 

AY 2021-22 

Total 

Unused tax losses recognised 

Balance as at 
31 March 2022 

Balance as at 
1 April2021 

6;.62 

971.12 

(497.14) 

541.60 

Balance as at 
1 April2020 

69.34 

542.73 

(147.70) 

(309.91) 

154.46 

Carry Forward 
Losses 

Expiry assess1uent 
year 

688.27 

688.27 

688.27 

2027-28 

2028-29 

2029-30 

Recognised in profit 
or loss during the 

year 

(37.88) 

502.84 

323.92 

788.88 

Recognised in profit 
or loss during the 

year 

(1.72) 

428.39 

(349.44) 

309.91 

387.14 

Balance as at 
31 March 2022 

29.74 

1,473.96 

(173.22) 

1,330.48 

Balance as at 
31 March 2021 

67.62 

971.1 2 

(497.1 4) 

541.60 

Balance as at 
31 March 2021 

Carry Forward Losses 

206.04 

362.08 

1,407.17 

1,975.30 

1,975.30 

Expiry assessment 
year 

2027-28 

2028-29 

2029-30 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

23 Related party disclosure 

A. Re lated parties with whom the company had transactions during the year 

(a) Parent company: 

G R fnfraprojt'Cls Limited 

(b) Key Management l'ersonnel ("KMP"): 

Mr. Anand Ra thi - Director (resigned w.d. 6 Ap1ii 2022) 
Mr. Varun Bhas in- Additional Director (appointed w.e.f. 6 April 2022) 
!v[r. Vikas Agarwal -Director 
Mr. Karan Agarwal - Director (resigned w.e.f. 28 March 2022) 
Ms Gunjan Jain - Comp?~1Y Secretary (resigned w .e .f. 2 December 2020) 
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Darji -Chief Fina ncial Officer and Chief Executive Officer 
Ms. Nandini Agarwal - Company Sl'Cretary (w.<'.f. 8 January 2021 ) 

B. Related party transactions with Parent Company and its dosing balances 

Tht" terms cmd conditions of the transactions w ith key management personnel and their rclat('d parties WE'rE' no mort.' f.1vourable than thost.• availablt."'r or 
thosl) which might reasonably be expected to be ava ildb!c, in respect of similar transactions with non-key management personnci related entities on an 
arm's length basis. 

The aggregate VCJlue of the Company!s transactions o:md outstandil1g balances relating to key management personnel and entities over which they have 
control or significant intluence is as foll ovv·s: 

Nahue of transaction 

{a) lo<>n received 

(i) G R Infra projects Limi ted 
Co) Loan repaid 

(i) G R l.nfroprojects limited 
{r) Construction costs 

(i) G R l.nfroprojects Limited 
(d) Mobilisation advances adjusted 

(i) G R l.nfraprojects Limitt'd 
(e) lnterest received on mobilis:1tion advanc~.:.•s 

(i) G R [.nfroprojects Limited 
(f) Interest paid on unsecured loan 

(i) G R [nfraprojects Limited 
(g) Remuneration 

li) Ms. i\:andi.ni A);arwal 
(ii) Ms. Gunjan Jain 

Particulars 

(a) Loan payable 

(i) G R Infra projects Limited 
(b) Trade pavab!e 

(i) G R Infra projects Limited 
(c) Remuneration payable 

(i) l\-1s Nandini Agan'\·al - Companv Secretary 

?iu Lakh~ 

Transaction value 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

1,931.42 

1,200.00 

8,209.39 

753.64 

4.19 

4,367.21 

462.48 

25,497 .16 

4,035.00 

172.79 

378.80 

1.05 
2.83 

Balance outstanding receivable/payable 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

8,460.87 7,051.18 

478.28 6,858.90 

0.35 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highw ay Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for tht• year ended 31 March 2022 

24 Fair Val ue Measurements 

A. Accounting class ification an d fair val ues 

As at 31 March 2022 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balance 
Other financial assets 
Total Financial assets 

BL"~rrowing:s 

Trade payable 
Other financial liabil ities 
Tota l Financial l iabi lities 

As at 31 March 2021 

Particulars 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other fin"'ncial assets 
Total Financial assets 

Borrowings 

Trade payable 

Other fin,mcialliabilities 

Tota l Financi al liabilities 

FVT PL• 

FVTPL* 

'"FVTPL- Fau \·alue through proftt and loss 

FVOCI .. 

FVOCI** 

..,.FVOCI = Fair value t..'lu'ough other comprehensive income 

Amortised cost 

4S6.56 
4,657.66 
2,937.00 

34,462.25 

42,543.46 

40,470.81 

507.36 

0.35 

40,978.52 

A mortised cost 

1,300.61 

96.72 

34,389.69 

35,787.02 

29,464.69 

6,888.64 

0.35 

36,353.68 

Total 

486.5j 
4,657.66 
2,937.00 

34,462.25 

42,543.46 

40,470.81 

507.36 

0.35 
40,978.52 

Total 

1,300.61 

Y6.72 
34,38%9 
35,787.02 

29,464.69 

6,888.64 

0.35 

36,353.68 

l evell ­
Quoted 
price in 
active 

m arkets 

Levei 1-
Quoted 
price in 
active 

n1arkets 

Level2 -
Sign ificant 
observable 

inputs 

Fa ir Value 

Leve1 3 -
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

Fair VaJue 

Levei 2 -
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level3 -
Significant 

unobservable 
inputs 

t in Lnkh.~ 

Total 

~in Lakh; 

Total 

The fair \'alues of the financial assets and. financiall ia}:lilities included in the level 2 categor;' above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted 
pricing models based on a discounted cash flO\'\' analysis, \vlth the n1ost significant inputs being the discount rate that retlects the credit ri~k of counterparties. 

There have been no transfers between levell and levd 2 during the year~. 

Valuation technique used to detennin~ fair value: 
• Inputs included in Levell ot Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock exchange and for NAV declared by the Funds. 
• Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from ban..~s and other recognised institutions such as FD\'D-1DA/FEDAJ. 
• L'1puts included in Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued us ing acceptable ,.·aluation tech."'liques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash 
Flow lvlethod. 

Note: ,'\.II financial instluments for \-vhich fair value is recogPlsed or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the 
!ov.rest level input thai is significant to the fair value measurement as a ,...,,hole. 

25 Financial instru1nents risk ma nagement objectives and policies 

The Company's financial liabilities comprise mainly of borro"vings, tTade and oth~r payable.5. The Con1pany's financial a5se ts comprise mainly of cash and cash 
equivalents and other receivables. 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty wi!l not meet its ubiigaHons under a financ iai instrument or customer contTact. leading to a fin,u1cialloss . The Company 
is exposed to credit risk primariiy trade receivables and other financiai as~ets including deposits w ith banks. 1l1e Company's exposure and credit ratings of its 
counh.:'rparties are continuuu~ly monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

A. Market risk 

?\.1arket risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the company' s income or the. 
value of its holdings of financial instruments. Nlarket risk i~ attributable to all market r isk sensitive financial instruments. 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financia l s tatements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

B. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty wili not meet its obliga tions under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. The company 

is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial a:;:5-ets including deposits '-Vi th banks. The company's exposurt:' and credi t ratings of its 
counterpGJrties are continu0usly monitored and the aggregate~ value of transactions is rt"asonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

The carryi ng amount of following financic1l assets represents the maximum credit e>..posure: 

Other financial assets 

This comprises mainly of 12'0nstruction asset receivabie - Hight for Annuity receivable from NH AI, deposits w ith banks Credit risk arising from these 
construction assets is limited and there is no collateral held against these because the counterparties are NHAL 

C. Currency risk 

Tht.• functional cuiTenc;· of th~=.• Company is fndian Rupet:.'S ("Rs."). The Company is not exposed to foreign cun-t.'ncy risk. 

D. Interest rate risk 

JntE>rest rate risk is the risk that tlw fair value or futu rE' ca~h flows of a finandal instrument \\.·ill fluc-tu ate brcause of changes in rnarke t interest ra tes. The 
Company is exposed to interest rote risk rt.~sulting from fluctuations in in terest mtes. Cornpany's borrowing includes unsecured l o<~n taken loan from banks & the 
Parent Company. Summary of financial assets <~nd financial liabili ties hns bf.">en provided below: 

Exposure to interest rate risk 

llle in tert:.'st rate profile of the Company's interest- bearing: financial ins trument as reported to management is <lS follows: 

Fixed-rate instruments 

Financial a:,sets 
Financial liabilities 

Variable-rate instruments 

Fi.n~nciaJ assets 
Financi al liabili ties 

Interest rate sensitivity 

? ill Lakhs 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

7,243.30 

34.462.25 
40.470.81 

34,38~.64 

2Y,464.64 

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense [rom borrmvings as a result of ("hange in interest rates. The follov.,ring table demonstrntes tlw sensitivity 
of floating rate financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shHt of 100 basis points 
interest rate across all yield curves. This calculation aiso assumes thnt the change occurs a t the balance sheet drlte and has been calculated based on tisk exposurf.">s 
outstanding as at that d<:lte. Th e year end balances are not necessnrily representative of the avernge debt outstanding during the period. 

Sens itivity analysis 

Interes t rate 
- increase by 100 basis points 
-decrease bv "100 basis pl)ints 

F. Liquidity risk 

? i11 l..nkh; 

Impact on profit before tax 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(60.09) 
60.09 

49.25 
(49.25) 

Liquidity risk !s the risk that the Company wHJ encounter difficulty in mt~eting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by deli vering 
cash or another fi nancial asset. The Company's approach to managing liqu idity is. to ensure, as f.u as possible, that it wi11 have sufficient liquidity to meet its. 
liabilities w hen they are due, under both normal and sh·essed conditions. \·v ithout incurring unacceptable losses or riskinb damage to the Company's reputation. 
The Company invest in liquid mutual fund s to meet the immediate obligations. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The follov.ring are the remaining cuntrat."iuc.d maturities of financial liabilities at the repmiing date. Th.e amounts are gross and undiscounted. 
< iH Lr,khs 

as at 31 March 2022 Carrying Contractual cash flows 
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5 

year years 

Borrowings (incl. current maturities) 40,470.81 40,470.81 1,828.81 8,450.10 30,191.90 

Trade pJyables 507.36 507.36 507.36 
Other curr~nt financial liabilities 0.35 0.35 0.35 
Total 40,978.52 40,978.52 2,336.51 8,450.10 30,191.90 

as at 31 March 2021 Carrying Contractual cash flows 
amount Total Less than 1 1-5 years More than 5 

year years 

Borrrm:ings (incl. current maturities) 19,.!6-+.69 29.464.69 612.35 5,627.65 23,224.69 

Trade payables 6,888.64 6,888.64 6,388.(~ 

Other current financialliabilitie~ 0.35 0.35 0.35 
Total 36,353.68 36,353.68 7,501.34 5,627.65 23,224.69 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 20n 

26 Capital management 

Forth~ purpose of th~ Company'5 capital management, capital includes p:iid-up equity capital and all 0ther equity reserves attributable to th~ equity holders of 
the Company. The primary objt...'Ctive of the Company'~ capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capita! base so as to maintain investor, creditor 
and market confidenc€' and to sustain future de\·elopment of the busine-ss. Management monitors the retum on capital, to equity share holdt'rs. 

The Ct...,mpany manages its capital structure and mak~ adjustnwnts to it in the light of changes in economk conditions and the require-ments of the financial 

covenants. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call loans <~nd borrowings. There have been no bre<1ches in the 
financial covenants of any interest ~aring loans and borrowing during the year. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. the Company mlly adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capitai to shareholders or issue ne\\o" shares. The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is net debt 
divided by totaJ equity. The Company's policy is to keep the net debt to equity ratio belmv 3. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and 
borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits. 

Total borrO\\ings 
Less: c<:~sh and cash equivillents 
Adjusted net debt 

Equity sh.ue capital 

Other equity 

Total equ.ity 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 

< i11 Lakhs 

31 March 2022 31 Ma.rch 2021 

? in takh:: ? in Lttkh:: 

40,470.81 

-1,657.66 
35,813.15 

1.260.00 

3,940.76 

5,200.76 

6.89 

29,46-+.69 
96.72 

29,367.97 

1.260.00 

1,595.19 

2,855.19 

10.29 

No changes were rn,1de in the objectives, policies or processes for managing cc1pital during the year ended 31 March 202.2 and 31l\.·larch 2021 . 

27 Ratio 

Current Ratio (in times) 
(Current ?ssets/ Current liabilitie;) 

2 Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 
(Toto I Debt/ Tot'! Equity) 
(fotc!J Debt= Debt comprise>s of current borrowings( induding cu. .. •Tent matu_rities of long tenn borrowings), non cun·ent 
borrm.\-·in,ss a.nd interest accrued on borrowings and excludes the unsecured borrm·ving taken ilnd outstanding from the 
holding company (C R Infra projects Limited) . 
Total Equi ty (net worth) = Equity share capital+Other equity+ unsecured borrowing taken from the holding company ) 

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times} 
( (Earning before interest and tax and depreciation) / (principal repayment of non·current borrowings (excluding repayment of 
unsecured borrowi.r1.g taken from the holding cmnpany) n1ade during the period and finance costs)) 

4 Return on equity ratio(%) 
(Profi t for the period or year / Net worth) 
{Net 'North: Equity ~hare capital•Other equity + unsecured borrowing tak.en and outstartding from the holding company) 

5 Inventory turnover ratio (in times) 
( Re\·enue from operation ( annualised) / Average ln\'f•ntory) 

6 Trade receivables turnover ratio {in times) 
( Revenue froin. operation ( annualised) / Average account receivable) 
(Average account receivable= Average trade receivables+ average unbiUed revenue) 

7 Trade payables turnover ratio {in times) 
(Purchases mad'' during the year ( annualised) / Average account payable) 

8 Net capital turnover ratio (in times) 
(Revenue from operation ( annualised) ; working capital) 
(Working capital = Current ~->se ts - Current liabili ties) 

9 Net profit ratio (%) 
(Profit/ (loss) for the period/ Total Income) 

10 Return on capital employed (%) 

(Profit before intrest and taxes for the period or year / Capital employed) 
(Capital emploved =Total assets- Current liabilities) 

1l Return on Investment(%) 
(Profit for the year/ Total asset>) 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

4.72 1.28 

2.34 2.26 

1.42 1.23 

17.17% 2.90% 

NA NA 

0.42 0.99 

2.22 3.20 

1.63 12.21 

15.7/':"u 1.03% 

13.92 ~, 6.06% 

tl.93 ~:. 0.71% 



GR Akkalkot Solapur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial s ta tements (con tinued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 

28 Disclosure p ursuant to appendix E of !nd AS 115 for Service Concession Arrangements 

Name of entity D escription of the a rrangement 

GR Akkalkot 
Solapur Highway 

Private Limited 

Tht:' Group is formed as n special purpose v~hic!e 
{SPVJ to design, build, operatt- and transfer basis, 
("DBOT Annuity"'c>r " Hybrid Annuity '') the project 

relating to Four Laning of AkkJlkot -Solapur 
sectionof N H -150E with paved shoulders from 
design chainage km.99.-l00 to km138.352 /existing 
chainage from km.102.819 to km.141.8il0 (design 
length 38.952km.} inculding Akkalkot bypass 
(design length 7.350 km) in the State of Maharastra 
on Hybrid Annuity ~·l ode, which sha ll be partly 
financed by the Concessionaire 1Nho sha ll recover 
its investment c:md costs through payment to be 

mildt• by the Juthority, in accordance \'vith tht:­
tenns and condition to bt.• set in concession 
ugreement to be entered in to . 

Significant terms of the arrangement 

Period of concession: 2018-2035 

Remunt•ration: 40% during construction period and 
b::dance 60% in half yearly annuity in 15 yt•a rs as pt•r 
concessio n agret•ment 
Investmt•nt grant from concession grantor: No 

Infrastructurt.' return at tht.• t.•nd of concession period : 
Yes 
ln\'estment and renewal obligations: Nil 

Re-pricing datt•s: No 

Ba:;:is upon which re-pricing or re-nt•gotiation is 
determined : NA 
Premium payablt.> to gran tor: Nil 
PCOD Date: 31-03-202"1 

Annuity receivable from 
concession gran tor 

(including Contract assets 
receivables) 

31 M arch 2022 

31 March 2021 

34.389.69 



GR Akkalkot Sola pur Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for lhe vcar ended 31 ~1cul"h 2022 

29 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS} 115, Revenu£> from Contracts with Customers 

A. Disaggregated revenue information 

i) Type of sen•ice rendered 
Sale of services 

Total 

ii) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography 

India 

Outs1de Indta 

Total 

iii) Timing of Revenue recognition 

Revenue from goods and services transferred to customers at a pomt in time 

Revenue from goods and services transferred to customers over time 

Total 

B. Contract balances: 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

14,741.57 

14,741.57 

14,741.57 

14,741.57 

14,741.57 

14,741.57 

:. iu Lnkhs 

Year ended 
31 March 2021 

27,569.55 

27,569.55 

27,569.55 

27 ,.569.55 

27,569.55 

27,569.55 

The fo llowing table provides information about receivables, cont ract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers. 

Trade receivables 

Opening balance 

Closine ba lance 

The incredse I decrease m trade rece1vables is main ly due to increase I decrease in Sdles . 

. A.nnuily receivable from concession grantor (including Contrac t assets receivables) 

Opening balance 

Closing ba lance 

Year e nded 

31 March 2022 

1,300.61 

486.55 

34,389.69 

34,454.62 

. iu Lnkhs 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

1,300.61 

20,202.02 

34,389.69 

Contract assets/ financial assets (annuity redevable from concess ion grantor) are recognised as per Appendix D to Ind AS 115, when the Company has an 
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the dlfC•ction of the grantor for the cons !nKtion services. 

Contract liabilities 

Openmg balance 

Closing balance 

379.93 4,277.50 

379.93 

Contract liabil ities include advance from customers and transaction price allocated to unexpired service obligations. 

C. The amount of revenue recognized from 

-Performance obligations satisfied in previous years 

-Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 

U. l'erforma nce obliga tion 
i) Sales ol Ser\'ices. 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

379.93 

~ m Lnkhs 

Year ended 

31 March 2021 

3,897.57 

The prrfcrmance obligation is sati~fied over tune as the assets is under control of customer and they Simu ltaneously receives and consumes the benefits 
provided by the Company. The Company received progress ive payment toward provision or services 

E. Reconcil iation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the coniracte.:.d_,p:.cr.:.;ic'-'e'-: --,-.,..---------"-;_; 'cc.".cL:cn;.:.kl.:.;"_ 

Year ended Year ended 

Revenue as per contractl'd price 

Adjustments 

Claim~ 

Variab l~ consideration- performance bonus 

Revenue from contract with customers 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

14,741.57 27,569.55 

14,741.57 27,569.55 



30 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Face value per equ ity share (in Rs.) 
(a) Profit for the yea r attributable to equit)' shareholders 
(b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 
(c) Equity shares issued durinh the year 
(d) Number of equity shares at the end of the year 
(e) \-Veigh ted average number of equih' shares for calculating basic EPS 
(f) \-Veig:hted average nurnber of equity shares for calculating d iluted EPS 

Earnings Per Share (in Rs.): 

Note: 

Basic earning per share (a/ e) 

Diluted earning per share (a/f) 

Ref Note No. 

~- iH Lr.khs 

31 M arch 2022 31 March 2021 

10.00 10.00 
2,3-i5.57 286.83 

1,26,00,ll00 1,26,00,000 

1,26,00,000 1,26,00,000 
1,26,00,000 1,26,00,000 
1.26,00.000 1,26,00,000 

18.62 2.28 

18.62 2.28 

\-Veigh ted average number of equity sha res is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity 
shares issued during the year mul tiplied by the time weighting factor. TI1e time \Veigh ti ng- factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are 
outstanding as a proportion of total ntunber of days d urin~ the year. 

31 Segment reporting 

Basis for seg mentation 

rn accordanc~ with the requirement:; of lnd AS 1ll8- -Segment Reporting"~ the Company is primarily engaged in a business of civil construction and 
has no other p rimary reportilble segments. The Man.<~ging Director of the Company a llocate the rtSou rces and assess the performance of the Company, 
thus he is the Chief Operating Decisil'l1 1\ ·laker {CODl\-1) The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence rw 
~parate sE>gmE>nt needs to bt~ disck'5-ed. 
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Information abo ut g eographical areas 

As the Company Opt>rates in India only, hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed . 

Information about major customers 

Revenue of Rs 14741.57lilkhs are derived from single customer (NHAI) which amou nts to "10(.-f, or more of the Company's revenue. 

Contingent liabilities and conm1itments 

A. Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

(a) Claims aga inst the Company n ot acknowledged as d ebts 

(i) Indirect tax ma tters 
(ii) Direct tax matter> 
(iii) Civ il matters 

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees: 

Guarantees g-iven to third parties 
Total 

B. Commitments 

(a) Other Commitments 

As at 

31 March 2022 

2.837.59 

( iu Lakhs 

As at 

31 March 2021 

9.536:76 

33 The Company has assesc;ed the possible impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its business operations, liquidity position culd recoverability of its asset 
balances as at March 31, 2022 based on the internal and extema! sources of iniormation upto the date of approval of these audited standalone financial 
stcltement. Also, the management does not ~ee any risks in the Company' s ability to continue as a going concern an d meeting its liabili ties as and w hen 
they fall due. The Company has adequate funds and/ or unutilized ftmd ·based credit facilities available, to take care of any urgent requirernent of 
funds. Accordingly, the Company believes that there is no material impact of Covid 19 on these audited standalone fina..l1Cicll s tatetnenL The final 
impact of COVID-19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these audited standalone financial st,ltement and hence 
management \Viii continue to monitor any m c1 terial changes to the future e(onomic conditions. 

34 Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassifi~d when~v~r necessary to confirm this year's clas:;ification. 
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